
 
 

ADULTS SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY BOARD 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
Agenda 
 
 

Date Tuesday 28 January 2025 
 

Time 6.00 pm 
 

Venue Lees Suite, Civic Centre, Oldham, West Street, Oldham, OL1 1NL 
 

Notes 
 

1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST- If a Member requires advice on any 
item involving a possible declaration of interest which could affect his/her 
ability to speak and/or vote he/she is advised to contact Alex Bougatef or  at 
least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 
 
2. CONTACT OFFICER for this agenda is Constitutional Services - email 
constitutional.services@oldham.gov.uk  
 
3. PUBLIC QUESTIONS - Any Member of the public wishing to ask a 
question at the above meeting can do so only if a written copy of the 
question is submitted to the contact officer by 12 noon on Friday, 24 January 
2025. 
 
4.  FILMING - The Council, members of the public and the press may record 
/ film / photograph or broadcast this meeting when the public and the press 
are not lawfully excluded.  Any member of the public who attends a meeting 
and objects to being filmed should advise the Constitutional Services Officer 
who will instruct that they are not included in the filming. 
 
Please note that anyone using recording equipment both audio and visual 
will not be permitted to leave the equipment in the room where a private 
meeting is held. 
 
Recording and reporting the Council’s meetings is subject to the law 
including the law of defamation, the Human Rights Act, the Data Protection 
Act and the law on public order offences. 
 
Please also note the Public attendance Protocol on the Council’s Website 
 
https://www.oldham.gov.uk/homepage/1449/attending_council_meetings 
 

 MEMBERSHIP OF THE ADULTS SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY 
BOARD 

 Councillors Adams, Hamblett, Hurley, J. Hussain, Ibrahim, Kouser, Malik, 
McLaren (Vice-Chair), Moores (Chair), Rustidge and Sharp 
 

 

Public Document Pack

mailto:constitutional.services@oldham.gov.uk
https://www.oldham.gov.uk/homepage/1449/attending_council_meetings


 
 

Item No  

1   Apologies For Absence  

2   Urgent Business  

 Urgent business, if any, introduced by the Chair 

3   Declarations of Interest  

 To Receive Declarations of Interest in any Contract or matter to be discussed at 
the meeting. 

4   Public Question Time  

 To receive Questions from the Public, in accordance with the Council’s 
Constitution. 

5   Minutes of Previous Adults Social Care and Health Scrutiny Board Meeting 
(Pages 5 - 10) 

 The Minutes of the Adults Social Care and Health Scrutiny Board held on 26th 
November 2024 are attached for approval. 

6   Smoking in Pregnancy (Pages 11 - 18) 

 This report provides an overview of the progress that has been made to reduce 
the smoking in pregnancy rates in Oldham. 

7   Terms of Reference - Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee for the 
Northern Care Alliance (Pages 19 - 28) 

 To consider amendments to the Terms of Reference of the Joint Health 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee for the Northern Care Alliance (JHOSCNCA).  

8   Work Programme (Pages 29 - 34) 

 To consider and note the Scrutiny Board’s Work Programme 2024/25. 

9   Key Decision Document (Pages 35 - 48) 

 Details of key decisions to be considered by the Cabinet at future meetings. 

10   Rule 13 and 14 (Pages 49 - 50) 

 To consider any rule 13 or 14 decisions taken since the previous meeting. 

11   MioCare Annual Review (Pages 51 - 70) 

 To consider the MioCare Annual Review 2023/24 

12   Exclusion of Press and Public  



 
 

 To consider that the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the 
following item of business, pursuant to Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 on the grounds that discussions may involve the likely disclosure of 
exempt information, under paragraph 3 as defined in the provisions of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Act, to the Local Government Act 1972 and public interest 
would not be served in publishing the information. 

13   MioCare Annual Review (Pages 71 - 80) 

 To provide an update on the operational and financial performance of MioCare 
Group during the financial year 2023/24, and give an overview on business 
strategy and an update on the budget for 2024/25. 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

ADULTS SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY BOARD 
26/11/2024 at 6.00 pm 

 
 

Present: Councillor Moores (Chair)  
Councillors Adams, Hamblett, J. Hussain, Kouser, Malik, 
McLaren (Vice-Chair), Rustidge and Sharp 
 

 Also in Attendance: 
 Councillor Brownridge Cabinet Member for Adults, health 

and Wellbeing 
 Rebecca Fletcher Director of Public Health 
 Jayne Ratcliffe Director of Adult Social Services 
 Claire Hooley Assistant Director of Commissioning 

and Market Management 
 Fran Lautman Head of Customer and Digital 

Experience 
 Andrew Mather Constitutional Services 
   

 

 

1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Ibrahim. 

2   URGENT BUSINESS   

There were no items of urgent business received. 

3   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

There were no declarations of interest received. 

4   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME   

There were no public questions. 

5   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS ADULTS SOCIAL CARE AND 
HEALTH SCRUTINY BOARD MEETING  

 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on the 8th 
October 2024 be approved as a correct record. 

6   MINUTES OF THE GREATER MANCHESTER JOINT 
HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  

 

The Minutes of the meetings of the Greater Manchester Joint 
Health Scrutiny Committee held on 10th September and 15th 
October 2024 were submitted for information. 
 
RESOLVED: That the minutes be noted.  

7   MINUTES OF THE JOINT HEALTH SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE FOR THE NORTHERN CARE ALLIANCE  

 

The minutes of the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee for the Northern Care Alliance held on 11th July 2024 
were submitted for information. 
 
RESOLVED: That the minutes be noted. 

8   CORPORATE PERFORMANCE REPORT Q2 2024/25   

The  Corporate Performance Report (CPR) was submitted which 
provided an overview of corporate performance against agreed 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



 

service business plan measures for the 2024/25 Q2 period (July 
– September). The CPR report for this Scrutiny Board contained 
information on Adult Social Care and Public Health key metrics 
and targets. 
 
In respect of Adult Social Care it was reported that there were 
no Key  Performance Indicators (KPIs) which were 
underperforming by more than 5%.  Six KPIs were performing at 
or above target  and one KPI: ‘Percentage  of Older people (65 
and over) still at home 91 days after discharge from hospital’ 
was rated as Amber, performing at just below target. 
 
The report highlighted a number of successes in improving 
performance including meeting ‘the long term support needs met 
by admission to residential and social care homes’  which was 
projected to be significantly  better than the annual target.  This 
would continue to be an area for further development of the 
Strength based approach to meeting needs, which focussed on 
a home first approach and supporting carers. Several other 
areas of work requiring further development were identified. 
These included, reviewing short term placements to support 
hospital discharges of acutely unwell people. 
 
In respect of Public Health a Dashboard was presented showing 
performance of 17 key performance indicators, KPIs. The report 
highlighted a number of successes in improving performance 
including and increasing capacity to support Social Prescribing, 
reducing the prevalence of smoking at the time of delivery and 
an increase in capacity to support drug and alcohol treatment. 
 
Areas identified for further development work  were; accessing 
performance data  for integrated family services; accessing NHS 
Health check data and further work to reduce smoking.  
 
Members commented on a number of ways in which the 
presentation of information in the Dashboard could be improved 
to provide information more clearly including the better use of 
colour, the consistent use of dates and highlighting where 
targets had changed. 
 
 
RESOLVED: 
1. To note the progress in implementing the business plan 
objectives. 
2.The areas of consistent good performance and improvements 
be welcomed. 
 

9   OVERVIEW OF OLDHAM'S CARE MARKET   

The Assistant Director of Commissioning and Market 
Management s gave a presentation outlining the state of adult 
social care in Oldham, focusing on commissioning processes, 
legislative frameworks, demographics, market sustainability, 
gaps, opportunities, and future priorities. The approach aimed to 
ensure that care services were high quality, financially 

Page 6



 

sustainable, and designed to foster independence and improve 
outcomes for service users. Collaboration with providers was a 
central theme, with a shift towards preventative and strength-
based models of care. National frameworks, such as the Care 
Act 2014, alongside ongoing financial pressures and the 
integration of health and social care systems, shaped the local 
agenda. 

Oldham’s demographic trends revealed a significant increase in 
the older adult population, particularly those over 85, by 2033. 
The care market predominantly served individuals aged 65 and 
above, though services are also required for younger residents. 
Current frameworks and contracts, including those for nursing 
and residential homes, care at home, and supported living for 
individuals with autism and learning disabilities, would extend 
into the late 2020s. Efforts were underway to recommission 
services and develop new provider lists, such as those for day 
services and brokerage. 

The market faced several challenges, including financial and 
workforce pressures exacerbated by the legacy of COVID-19. 
The fragility of the care home sector and consolidation within the 
home care market present risks, particularly in cases of provider 
failure. There was also a shortage of specialist care and housing 
options for young adults transitioning to adult services. There 
were opportunities to address gaps through targeted tenders 
and strategic development. Plans were in place to improve 
oversight of direct payments, expand the availability of personal 
assistants, and develop specialized services and housing 
options. 

To maintain quality and address risks, providers rated as 
"Requires Improvement" by the Care Quality Commission 
received additional support and oversight. Risk ratings are 
determined based on quality concerns or the sustainability of 
services, with multi-disciplinary groups managing risks in the 
market. Nursing supply remained a significant issue, 
compounded by recent closures of care homes and changes in 
service provision that had reduced capacity. 

Looking ahead, priorities included the development of robust 
commissioning plans for complex care needs, integrating 
assistive technology, and engaging with the market to address 
current and future demands. The focus remained on ensuring 
sustainable, high-quality care services that can meet the 
evolving needs of Oldham's aging population and providing 
specialised support where required. Through collaboration and 
strategic investment, Oldham aimed to build a resilient care 
market that delivered effective and personalised support to its 
residents. 

RESOLVED: That the report be noted. 
 

10   HEALTH INEQUALITIES PLAN UPDATE   

The Director of Public Health submitted a report providing an 
update on the Health and Wellbeing Board’s two year Health 

Page 7



 

Inequalities Plan 2022-2024.The Plan addressed various 
dimensions of inequality across the borough. Despite the 
completion of the planned actions, the overarching health 
inequalities had persisted, with some metrics even worsening 
due to external factors like the cost-of-living crisis. The plan's 
framework had sought to align with the Marmot review and 
encompassed six thematic areas, each driven by a senior 
sponsor: Children and Young People, Health and Wellbeing, 
Work and Unemployment, Housing and Environment, Income 
and Debt, and Health in All Policies. These themes were 
supported by 57 distinct actions, some newly developed and 
others building on existing initiatives. 

Progress had been notable in embedding actions into 
established structures and creating frameworks to sustain them 
beyond the plan's timeline. For example, health services aligned 
with the Greater Manchester Integrated Care Partnership 
introduced tools like a prevention framework and expanded the 
"Living Well" model to enhance mental health support at a 
community level. In housing, significant strides had been made 
in addressing damp and mould, rolling out free pest control 
services, and advancing a strategic approach to health impact 
assessments for new developments. However, challenges such 
as escalating housing needs and disparities in healthy life 
expectancy between wards remained. 

On employment, the Economic Board worked on the creation of 
education and job opportunities, particularly targeting 
underrepresented groups. The rollout of campaigns promoting 
equitable recruitment and linking lifelong learning to local 
employment had shown promise but faced limitations due to 
demand pressures. Similarly, income and debt-related actions, 
like the Money Advice Referral Tool (MART) and Low Income 
Family Tracker (LIFT), aimed at early interventions for 
vulnerable households, had shown progress but struggled 
against the tide of rising living costs and debt burdens. 

Community engagement featured prominently, with efforts to 
integrate public input into system-wide decision-making through 
tools like the Oldham Impact Assessment. Resident voices 
increasingly influenced the design and evaluation of services, 
though challenges in sustaining deeper engagement and 
resource limitations had tempered the impact. 

While the Health Inequalities Plan had advanced several 
initiatives and embedded many into systemic practices, the 
widening health disparities reflected the scale and complexity of 
the challenges faced. 

RESOLVED: That the report be noted. 

11   WORK PROGRAMME   

The Scrutiny Board considered its Work Programme for 2023/24 
 
RESOLVED: That the Work Programme be noted  

12   KEY DECISION DOCUMENT   

Page 8



 

The Scrutiny Board considered the Key Decision Document 
which records key decisions that the authority is due to take. 
 
RESOLVED: that the Key Decision Document be noted. 

13   RULE 13 AND 14   

There was nothing to report under Rule 13 and 14. 
 

The meeting started at 6.00 pm and ended at 8.00pm

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Purpose of the Report 
 
This report provides an overview of the progress that has been made to reduce the 
smoking in pregnancy rates in Oldham to ensure that more babies are born smokefree 
and how this contributes to reducing infant mortality and the number of premature births, 
as well as reducing wider tobacco-related harm and mortality.  
 
Recommendations 
 
Adult Social Care and Health Scrutiny Board is asked to consider Oldham’s approach to 
reducing smoking in pregnancy rates and enabling more babies to be born and raised in 
smoke free homes. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Report to Adult Social Care and Health Scrutiny Board 

 
Smoking in Pregnancy 
 

Portfolio Holder:  
Councillor Brownridge, Cabinet Member Health and Social Care 
 
Officer Contact:  Dr Rebecca Fletcher, Director of Public Health  
 
Report Author: Andrea Entwistle, Senior Business and 
Commissioning Manager (Public Health - Oldham Council)  
 
28 January 2025 
 
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



 

  2 

Adult Social Care and Health Scrutiny Board     28 January 2024 
 
Smoking in Pregnancy 
 
1 Context 
 
1.1 The UK has made considerable progress in reducing the harms related to tobacco. 

Smoking rates have fallen, both nationally and locally, over the last few decades but 
smoking remains the single greatest cause of preventable death, disability, ill-health and 
social inequality for local people.  
 

1.2 Smoking is the single most entirely preventable cause of ill health, disability, and death in 
the UK. It is also the biggest cause of health inequalities. Smoking reduces the quality of a 
person’s life and leads to an early death.  Smoking is a modifiable risk factor, with strong 
connections to wider socio-economic determinants of health, that affects three of the major 
killers in Oldham, which are circulatory disease, cancer, and respiratory disease.   Smoking 
harms almost every organ in the body. It is the biggest contributor to death and illness. On 
average a person that smokes loses 10 years of their life. Four in five cancers are caused 
by tobacco use, and 90% of lung cancer is directly attributable to smoking. Up to two out of 
three lifelong smokers will die from smoking and smoking accounts for 1 in 6 deaths in 
England, with huge inequalities existing across areas and populations. In Oldham, 600 
deaths and over 3,700 hospital admissions each year are attributable to smoking.  The risk 
of dying from smoking increases with the amount of tobacco smoked and the number of 
years smoked. On average, for every smoker who dies another thirty are suffering serious 
smoking-related diseases. Smokers see their GP over a third more often than non-
smokers. Quitting smoking at any age can improve health and life expectancy. 
 

1.3 Non-smokers are also at risk of harm through second-hand smoke exposure, especially 
vulnerable adults, children, and babies.  

 
1.4 Smoking during pregnancy can lead to preventable death and ill health. Smoking when 

pregnant not only harms the smoker but also harms the unborn baby.  Smoking whilst 
pregnant exposes the unborn baby to over 4000 dangerous chemicals that are contained 
within cigarettes and restricts the essential oxygen supply to the baby, which means their 
heart must beat harder every time the pregnant person smokes. Carbon monoxide in 
tobacco smoke reduces the amount of oxygen getting to the placenta and baby which can 
lead to women going into labour early as well as increasing the chance of miscarriage, 
doubling the chances of stillbirth, and increasing the risk of sudden infant death threefold. 
Babies of smokers are, on average, lighter than other babies, which can cause problems 
during and after labour. For example, they are more likely to have problems keeping warm 
and are more likely to get infections. Babies whose parents smoke are more likely to be 
admitted to hospital for bronchitis and pneumonia during their first year.  The sooner a 
pregnant person stops smoking, the better, but even stopping in the last few weeks of 
pregnancy will benefit the parent and their baby. 
 

1.5 Secondhand smoke (also known as passive smoking) also carries serious health risks for 
babies and children living in smoking households. There is no safe level of exposure to 
secondhand smoke and children and babies are particularly at risk. Children who live in a 
home where a parent or caregiver smokes are more likely to develop a range of illnesses 
including asthma, ear infections, meningitis and other serious illnesses that may need 
hospital treatment. To protect children from these harms a home must be fully smokefree. 
Keeping a home smokefree can also help to prevent smoking related fires in the home. In 
Greater Manchester, over 40% of accidental fire deaths are caused by smoking materials. 

 
1.6 Tackling smoking is one of the most evidence-based and effective interventions that we 

can take to prevent ill health. Reducing smoking prevalence would have a significant 

Page 12



 

  3 

impact on improving population health, reducing demand on health and social care 
services, and tackling health inequalities. However, smoking is an addiction most smokers 
were trapped into as children and young people. Two thirds of those who try smoking go on 
to become regular smokers, only a third of whom succeed in quitting during their lifetime. 
Most smokers want to quit and many more regret ever having started. Therefore, whole 
system action is needed to support those who want to quit and prevent people from starting 
smoking in the first place. 

 
1.7 Comprehensive tobacco control is a coordinated, multiagency approach to reducing 

smoking prevalence and the harm from tobacco. A coordinated and comprehensive 
approach to tobacco control across Oldham will make smoking less accessible, acceptable 
and desirable, empower successful quitting and stop young people starting to smoke.  
Supporting pregnant women and their partners, via a smokefree pregnancy pathway which 
includes focused sessions and treatments, is an evidence-based approach to help deliver a 
smokefree generation and to give babies and children the best start in life. 

 
2 Current Position 
 

National Position 
 

2.1 Reducing smoking during pregnancy was one of the three national ambitions in 
the Tobacco Control Plan published back in July 2017. A new Tobacco and Vapes Bill was 
introduced in 2024 and it is anticipated that new strategies around reducing smoking in 
pregnancy are being developed under the new government.   
 

2.2 The NHS Long Term Plan includes the commitment to roll out a Smokefree Pregnancy 
programme which includes bespoke, specialist advice, nicotine replacement therapy and a 
more intensive face-to-face follow up regime for pregnant women, including a incentive 
scheme and support for partners.  This model has been developed using published 
international evidence and learning from Greater Manchester’s Smoking in Pregnancy 
Programme. 
 

2.3 The NHS Long Term Plan set out an ambition to move responsibility for stop smoking 
support for pregnant women into maternity services (rather than as part of local authority 
commissioned Stop Smoking Services) by the end of March 2024. This is based on 
evidence of effectiveness for treating tobacco dependence in pregnancy as part of routine 
maternity care. As of March 2024, NHS England were reporting that 94% of maternity trusts 
in England are delivering tobacco dependence treatment. 

 
2.4 DHSC launched recruitment for a national smoke-free pregnancy incentive scheme in 

September 2024. This will enable all pregnant smokers within participating trusts to benefit 
from up to £400 in vouchers if they receive behavioural support to quit smoking and are 
biochemically shown to be smokefree up to 3 months post-partum.  The evidence for this 
scheme came from a pilot that was successfully delivered in Greater Manchester. 
 

2.5 There is a national ambition to achieve Smoking at Time of Delivery (SATOD) rates of 4% 
by 2030.  Nationally, 6.5% of pregnant women were recorded as smoking at time of 
delivery during quarter 1 of 2024/25. This is the lowest single quarterly SATOD rate since 
this data began to be recorded in 2006/07. There remains significant geographical variation 
in SATOD rates. In quarter 1, 2024/25, regional SATOD rates ranged from 3.7% in London 
to 8.4% in the North East and Yorkshire. However, rates have been falling across the 
country and the gap between regions is slowly narrowing. 
 
 
 

Page 13

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/5a822dc740f0b6230269b419/Towards_a_Smoke_free_Generation_-_A_Tobacco_Control_Plan_for_England_2017-2022__2_.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/tobacco-and-vapes-bill-2024


 

  4 

 
Greater Manchester Position 
 

2.6 Greater Manchester (GM) is committed to becoming the first global city region to be 
smokefree and since 2017 has been delivering its unprecedented and evidence-based 
Making Smoking History (MSH) strategy through a partnership of city region, local authority 
borough and community-based programmes. Built on the evidence-based World Health 
Organisation (WHO) MPOWER model, the programme has delivered system-wide 
transformation at scale, influenced national policy, including the Khan Review and NHS 
Long Term Plan, and delivered ongoing reductions to smoking prevalence across GM. The 
GM MSH GMPOWER Model features seven key components which ensure delivery of a 
comprehensive and system-wide approach to tobacco control based on improving and 
increasing quits and preventing relapse and uptake. An updated five-year Making Smoking 
History Strategic Delivery Framework and Action Plan was recently published and outlines 
the actions needed at a national, regional and local level to achieve Smokefree 2030. 

 
2.7 Reducing smoking prevalence is integral to GM’s approach to tackling inequalities and 

ensuring fair health for all. Becoming a smokefree city region by 2030 creates a unique 
opportunity to reduce health inequality, with the Office of National Statistics estimating that 
healthy life expectancy would increase by just over 6 years for men and 7 years for women 
if GM becomes smokefree by 2030.  
 

2.8 Smoking cessation also contributes to all five of the key clinical areas identified as priorities 
in NHS England’s Core20plus5 approach to reducing health care inequalities: 

 CORE20: Smoking accounts for half the difference in life expectancy between 
richest and poorest.  

 PLUS: Smoking tobacco is linked to >100 conditions.  

 5: 
o Respiratory disease – >80% of COPD, a leading cause of mortality, caused by 

smoking, 
o Maternity – women who smoke have 47% increased risk of stillbirth, 
o Mental Health – up to 50% of all deaths in people with Serious Mental Illness 

(SMI) are attributable to smoking, 
o Cancer – smoking is a leading cause of lung cancer, largest killing cancer in 

UK, 
o Hypertension – smokers are twice as likely to suffer acute coronary events and 

twice as likely to die from them. 
 

2.9 Greater Manchester’s initiatives, including swap to stop, acute inpatient pathways and 
financial incentives in pregnancy have all been seen as national exemplars and are being 
implemented across England. 
 

2.10 Greater Manchester’s Smokefree Pregnancy Programme, which is delivered between NHS 
Greater Manchester, local authorities, NHS foundation trusts and technology partner, 
Accenture, has successfully reduced smoking at time of delivery by more than 50% and led 
to more than 6,000 additional babies being born smokefree, since launching in 2018. The 
programme offers all pregnant women and birthing people, and their partners, free and 
personalised stop-smoking support through a specialist maternity stop-smoking service. 
This includes one-to-one advice and guidance, free nicotine replacement therapy and 
vapes, regular carbon monoxide screening, and an incentive scheme to stay smokefree.  
Greater Manchester’s approach to supporting pregnant people to quit smoking is having a 
positive impact and making a huge difference to people’s life.  Smoking rates in pregnancy 
are at an all-time low: last year saw the biggest annual fall in smoking in pregnancy rates 
since records began and Greater Manchester is now below the national average for the first 
time.  

Page 14

https://www.who.int/initiatives/mpower
https://makesmokinghistory.co.uk/partner-resources/3593-2/
https://makesmokinghistory.co.uk/partner-resources/3593-2/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/about/equality/equality-hub/national-healthcare-inequalities-improvement-programme/core20plus5/


 

  5 

 
2.11 Q2 24/25 is the first time GM achieved a result below the national ambition of 6% with a 

drop of over 50% from programme inception from 13% (Q1 17/18) to the lowest ever 
quarterly result of 5.7% as shown in the graph below.  
 

 
 

Oldham Position 
 

2.12 Reducing smoking is one of the key priorities of Oldham’s Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
and it is our ambition to work towards a smoke-free Oldham.  Smoking is identified as a key 
challenge facing the system in the Oldham Integrated Care Partnership’s Locality Plan and 
highlighted as one of the 18 core areas we need to improve and transform. Supporting 
smokefree pregnancies is a key aim in Oldham’s Infant Mortality Plan, which focuses on 
reducing the number of infant deaths in the area and aims to improve the health of all 
people in Oldham, including pregnant women and new mothers.  It is an ambition of 
Oldham Tobacco Alliance that all pregnancies will be smoke-free and that babies and 
children will grow up in smoke-free families and communities. 
 

1.8 Oldham’s smoking prevalence in adults in 2023 was 12% – this is a significant reduction 
from 2012 when smoking prevalence was at 24.2%.  The gap between the local prevalence 
rate and the England average of 11.6% has significantly closed but the rate remains higher 
than the trajectory needed to achieve the national and Greater Manchester ambition to be 
smoke free (which is to reduce overall adult smoking prevalence to less than 5%) by 2030. 
The proportion of the Oldham population who have never smoked is also smaller than the 
national average.  We know there is in some inconsistency with the methodology used to 
estimate adult smoking prevalence, which is currently conducted via self-declared 
telephone survey and does not account for hidden populations, including those 
experiencing homelessness.  We also know that there is considerable variation in smoking 
prevalence across the borough where rates are considerably higher in some wards, 
particularly those with high levels of deprivation.  As such, caution needs to be exercised 
when interpreting smoking prevalence data and trends.  

 
2.13 Oldham’s Smoking at time of delivery (SATOD) rates – which measures the number of 

pregnant people who smoked when their baby was born – has been decreasing and getting 
better over recent years.  In 2023/24, the annual Oldham rate was 8.9% which was still 
above the national average but considerably lower than it was a decade ago when it was 

Page 15



 

  6 

16.1% (2013/14).  This meant that there were 260 fewer babies born to a smoking parent in 
2023/24 compared to 2013/24.  
 

2.14 The latest Oldham ICB data for Q1 24/25 suggests that this year will see even further 
reductions as SATOD rates were showing to have reduced further to 6% - this would be an 
all-time low and would mean that rates in Oldham were below the national average.  
 
Oldham’s Smokefree Pregnancy Programme 

 
2.15 Oldham’s Smokefree Pregnancy Service delivers the GM Smokefree Pregnancy 

programme locally.  Oldham has a Specialist Midwife and two dedicated Maternity Support 
Workers based at The Royal Oldham Hospital. Nicotine Replacement Therapy (NRT) and 
vapes to be used as quit aids are now available via direct supply on antenatal clinic and 
ward, labour ward and postnatal ward and progress is being made to move towards 
offering NRT via the community team. The Smoking in Pregnancy Team offers training for 
all midwives/maternity staff, as well as e-learning, so that all maternity staff are clear on the 
importance of smoking cessation in pregnancy.  This also includes training around niche 
products, such as shisha, to ensure a coordinated approach to tackling tobacco related 
harm. 
 

2.16 Smoking cessation support for partners and significant others is offered via our Community 
Stop Smoking Service, Your Health Oldham, who also educate residents around the harms 
of secondhand smoke and support residents to have a smoke free home, which also has 
benefits in relation to safety by reducing the risk of house fires. 
 

2.17 The support available from the Smokefree Pregnancy team is part of a wider system of 
smoking cessation support, which falls under the ‘Offer Stop Smoking Support’ section of 
the Oldham Tobacco Control Action Plan and more details of other support available can 
be found at: www.oldham.gov.uk/keeping_healthy/stop_smoking   
 

2.18 Members from the Smokefree Pregnancy Team in Oldham will attend the meeting to 
provide an overview of the programme and how the reduction in maternal smoking rates 
has been achieved. 

 
3 Key Issues for Adult Social Care and Health Scrutiny Board to Discuss 

 
3.1 The Board is asked to note the progress that has been made and consider what more can 

be done to address smoking in pregnancy. 
 
4 Key Questions for Adult Social Care and Health Scrutiny Board to Consider 

 
4.1 The Board is asked to consider Oldham’s approach to reducing smoking in pregnancy rates 

and enabling more babies to be born and raised in smoke free homes. 
 

5 Links to Corporate Outcomes 
 

5.1 In Oldham, every individual matters and ensuring our residents have access to the care, 
support and opportunities to lead healthier, happier lives is a key collective mission for us. 
We recognise the need to pay particular attention to our most disadvantaged residents, 
who face the greatest barriers to opportunity. Supporting residents to stop smoking before, 
during and after pregnancy will considerably improve the health and wellbeing of both the 
smoking parent but also their unborn baby, and any other children and household 
members. Reducing smoking prevalence is a key component of our prevention approach to 
reduce the need for services, including health and social care. 
 
 

Page 16

https://www.oldham.gov.uk/info/200251/keeping_healthy/1885/stop_smoking


 

  7 

6 Consultation 
 

6.1 Quarterly Assurance meetings, led by the GM NHS Treating Tobacco Dependency Team, 
take place between the provider and both LA and GM NHS ICB commissioners of smoking 
cessation services – this includes consideration of service user engagement and feedback.   
 

6.2 The Director of Public Health, in her capacity as statutory officer, and the Cabinet Member 
for Health and Social Care have been appropriately briefed regarding progress and 
performance. 
 

7 Appendices  
 

7.1 None 

 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Reason for Decision 
 
The Scrutiny Board is asked to approve amendments to the Terms of Reference of the 
Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee for the Northern Care Alliance 
(JHOSCNCA).  
 
Executive Summary 
 
The role of the JHOSCNCA was to scrutinise the generic services provided by the 
Northern Care Alliance NHS Foundation Trust relating to the health of the population in 
Bury, Oldham Rochdale and Salford and contribute to the development of policy to 
improve health and reduce health inequalities in respect of services provided by the Trust. 
 
Following a decision of Salford City Council not to participate in the JHOSCNCA the 
remaining members of the committee representing Oldham, Bury and Rochdale wish to 
continue the JHOSCNCA without Salford. 
 
Revised Terms of Reference are presented which reflects Salford’s withdrawal. 
 
Recommendations 
 
 The Scrutiny Board is asked to: 

1. Approve the continued participation of Oldham Council in the JHOSCNCA. 
2. Approve amendments to the Terms of Reference 

Report to Adult Social Care and Health Scrutiny Board  

 
Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee for Northern Care Alliance -
Terms of Reference 
 

Portfolio Holder:   Councillor Barbara Brownridge 
 
 
Officer Contact:  Peter Thompson, Head of Democratic Services 
 
Report Author: Andrew Mather, Constitutional Services 
 
 
28th January 2025 

Page 19

Agenda Item 7



 

  2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adult Social Care and Health Scrutiny Board          28 January 2025                                                                                                                  
 
Update on Actions from Council 
 
1 Background 
1.1 The Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee for the Northern Care Alliance 

(JHOSCNCA) was established at the beginning of the 2024/25 municipal year. The 
purpose of the JHOSCNCA was to scrutinise the generic services provided by the 
Northern Care Alliance NHS Foundation Trust relating to the health of the 
population in Bury, Oldham, Rochdale  and Salford and contribute to the 
development of policy to improve health and reduce health inequalities in respect of 
services provided by the Trust.   

 
1.2 Salford City Council at its Full Council meeting held on 20th November resolved ‘to 

not to support Salford’s Membership of the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee and to retain existing arrangements or explore alternative scrutiny 
mechanisms.’  

 
1.3 Following Salford’s decision the meeting of the JHOSCNCA on the 19th December 

was cancelled and an informal meeting of Oldham, Bury and Rochdale members 
was held in its place to consider the future of the joint arrangement. Members 
agreed that the JHOSCNCA should continue with the remaining authorities and that 
the Terms of Reference be amended accordingly. 

 
2 Current Position 
 
2.1 The revised Terms of Reference differs from the current Terms of Reference in the 

following ways. 
 

• Deletion of all references to Salford 

• Changes the size of committee from 12 members to 9. 

• Changes the current quorum of five with at least one member from at least 
three of the constituent authorities represented; to a quorum of four with at 
least one member from each of the three constituent authorities represented. 

• At the request of the Northern Care Alliance NHS Foundation Trust clarifies 
that the committee will also comply with DHSC local authority health 
scrutiny guidance. 

 
3 Options/Alternatives 
 

Page 20



 

  3 

3.1 Option 1 - Revise the Terms of Reference and continue the JHOSCNCA without 
Salford’s participation.  

 
 Option 2   - Consider Oldham Council’s further participation in the JHOSCNCA.. 
 
4 Preferred Option 
 
4.1 Option1- Continuation of the JHOSCNCA with amended Terms of Reference was 

recommended by Oldham, Bury and Rochdale members of the JHOSCNCA  as the 
way forward at an informal meeting held on the 19th December 2024. 

 
5 Consultation 
 
5.1 An informal meeting of Oldham, Bury and Rochdale members on the JHOSCNCA 

was held on the 19th December 2024 to consider the way forward following Salford’s 
decision not to take part.  

 
6 Financial Implications  
 
6.1 N/A 
 
7 Legal Implications 
 
7.1 The JHOSCNCA has power to undertake all the necessary functions of health 

scrutiny in accordance with part 4, Health Scrutiny by Local Authorities, of the Local 
Authority (Public Health, Health and Wellbeing Boards and Health Scrutiny) 
Regulations 2013. 

 
8 Equality Impact, including Implications for Children and Young People  
 
8.1  N/A 
 
9 Key Decision 
 
9.1 No  
 
10 Key Decision Reference 
 
10.1 N/A 
 
11 Background Papers 
 
11.1 The following is a list of background papers on which this report is based in 

accordance with the requirements of Section 100(1) of the Local Government Act 
1972.  It does not include documents which would disclose exempt or confidential 
information as defined by the Act: 

 
 Salford City Council the Interim Head of Governance to Council on 20 November 

2024 title: Membership of the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 
Northern Care Alliance 
 

Page 21



 

  4 

 
12 Appendices  
 
12.1 Appendix 1 – Proposed Amended Terms of Reference of the Joint Health Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee for the Northern Care Alliance. 
   

  
 
  

Page 22



  APPENDIX 1 

 

TERM OF REFERENCE AND WORKING PRINCIPALS FOR THE JOINT HEALTH 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (JHOSC) FOR THE NORTHERN 

CARE ALLIANCE NHS FOUNDATION TRUST 

(Revised January 2025) 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 

PURPOSE 

To scrutinise the generic services provided by the Northern Care Alliance NHS 

Foundation Trust relating to the health of the population in Bury, Oldham and 

Rochdale  and contribute to the development of policy to improve health and reduce 

health inequalities in respect of services provided by the Trust.   

Membership 

The membership of the JHOSC will be made up of three Councillors from each of the 

three constituent local authorities (Bury, Oldham and Rochdale). 

Key Objectives and Responsibilities 

1. The JHOSC has the delegated powers of the three local authorities, Bury, Oldham 

and Rochdale  to undertake all the necessary functions of health scrutiny in 

accordance with part 4, Health Scrutiny by Local Authorities, of the Local Authority 

(Public Health, Health and Wellbeing Boards and Health Scrutiny) Regulations 2013, 

relating to reviewing and scrutinising health service matters provided by the Trust.  It 

will also comply with DHSC local authority health scrutiny guidance. 

 

 

Such matters to include: 

 

a) Receipt and consideration of performance information relating to the Northern Care 

Alliance NHS FT (NCA).   

b) Receipt and consideration of any published annual reports and quality accounts of 

the NCA or outcomes of official inspections e.g. the Care Quality Commission, 

Monitor, Place (Patient Lead Assessments of the Care Environment) Inspections, 

National Clinical Audit and Patients Outcome Programme.  

c) Improving access to NHS services.   

d) The review proposes for the implementation of new initiatives which affect people in 

Bury, Oldham and Rochdale  in respect of patients and public involvement. 

e) Review proposals for consideration of items relating to proposed substantial 

development/substantial variations to services provided by the alliance which affect 

the authorities referred to.  This could include:   

 

 Changes in accessibility of services and the rationale for those changes, 

 The impact of proposals on the wider community and on other services including 

economic impact, transport and regeneration,  

 The number of patients affected and the impact of the changes on the patients, 

Page 23

https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.gov.uk%2Fgovernment%2Fpublications%2Fadvice-to-local-authorities-on-scrutinising-health-services%2Flocal-authority-health-scrutiny&data=05%7C02%7Cmoneeza.iqbal%40nca.nhs.uk%7Cc49662d06b854a49688608dd03cd951b%7C9a12677ec2e94deba58aee1c59ac0161%7C0%7C0%7C638670903715920780%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=fx%2B9gvvFtXKhSINgV2NKpVH9Qe6gaK%2FJhFQwa1VpKRI%3D&reserved=0


  APPENDIX 1 

 

 Changes in the method of services delivery, for example, moving a particular service 

in to community settings rather than being entirely hospital based.   

 

2. To review the procedural outcome of consultation referred to in 1(e) above, 

particularly the rationale behind contested proposals.   

 

3. To undertake in depth thematic studies in respect of services to which the NCA 

contributes where such studies can be undertaken on a NCA/Three Locality  wide 

area basis.   

 

4. To take account of relevant information available and in particular relevant 

information provided by Health Watch under their powers of referral. 

 

5. To maintain affective links with Health Watch in the three local authority areas of 

Bury, Oldham and Rochdale  and give consideration to the co-option of appropriate 

patient representatives at the appropriate time.   

 

6. To co-opt people on to the joint committee in order to provide appropriate expertise.   

 

7. To commission pieces of research as and when the need arises from within the 

JHOSC budget.   

 

8. To promote a joint scrutiny function in the constituent authorities and raise public 

awareness. 

 

9. To refer locality-based issues to the respective local authority for investigation.   

 

NB Each authority reserves the right to undertake individual scrutiny of the NCA 

proposals/performance that specifically individually affects their local communities. 

 

Working Principles 

 

The working principles have been developed to provide a framework for scrutiny to 

take place.   

 

Membership 

 

Each constituent local authority (Bury, Oldham and Rochdale) shall appoint three 

Councillors to the Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee (JHOSC) each municipal 

year.  The JHOSC shall, therefore, have nine members.   

 

If a member of the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee for the Northern 

Care Alliance NHS FT is unable to attend a committee meeting that member may 

ask a substitute member to attend on his/her behalf in accordance with the 

conventions of their Council.  Substitute members may attend meetings to take place 

of the ordinary member for whom they are the designated substitute where the 

Page 24



  APPENDIX 1 

 

ordinary member may be absent for the whole of the meeting.  The Chair of the Joint 

Health Scrutiny Committee for the Northern Care Alliance should be notified via the 

Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Officer for the Northern Care Alliance NHS FT.   

 

Meetings 

 

The Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (JHOSC) is a committee 

established by the three constituent local authorities of Bury, Oldham and Rochdale .   

 

A schedule of meetings will be agreed by the committee at the beginning of each 

municipal year.   

 

Addition meetings may be convened by the committee. 

 

A chairman and a vice chairman will be elected by the committee at the first meeting 

of each municipal year. 

 

A quorum of four of the appointed members will apply, with at least one member 

from each  of the three constituent authorities represented. 

 

Any personal, prejudicial or pecuniary interests held by members should be declared 

on any items of business at the meeting, either under the agenda item declarations 

of interest or as soon as it becomes apparent.   

 

Decisions will be taken by consensus.  Where it is not possible to reach a 

consensus, a decision will be made by a simple majority of those members present 

at the meeting.  Where there are equal votes, the Chairman of the meeting will have 

the casting vote.   

 

The agenda and supporting papers will be circulated at least five working days in 

advance of meetings.  The minutes will be circulated to those with actions as soon 

as possible.  Minutes, agendas and papers will be published on the JHOSCs website 

pages.   

 

Meetings shall be held in public with specific time allocated for public question time.   

 

Work Programme 

 

A Work Programme will be developed annually by the committee.  The Work 

Programme will take in to account the priorities of the Northern Care Alliance, 

national and local areas of concerning the above, health priorities and health 

inequalities.   

 

Principles for Effective Scrutiny 

 

Page 25



  APPENDIX 1 

 

Scrutiny undertaken through the joint committee will be focused on improving health 

services for residents in areas served by the committee through the provision of 

acute hospital services for those residents.   

 

Improving health and health services through scrutiny will be open and transparent 

to members of the local authority, health organisations and members of the public.   

 

All members, officers, members of the public and patient representatives involved in 

improving health and health services through scrutiny will be treated with courtesy 

and respect at all times.   

 

Improving health and health services through scrutiny is most likely to be achieved 

through co-operation and collaboration between representatives of local Councils, 

the Northern Care Alliance NHS FT, representatives of Health Watch and the GM 

Integrated Care Board representatives commissioning hospital services.   

 

Co-operation and joint working will be developed over time through mutual trust and 

respect with the objective of improving health and health services for local people 

through effective scrutiny. 

 

All agencies will be committed to working together in mutual co-operation to share 

knowledge and deal will requests for information and reports for the JHOSC within 

the timescales set down.   The JHOSC will give reasonable notice of requests for 

information, reports and attendance at meetings.   

 

The JHOSC, whilst working within a framework of collaboration, mutual trust and co-

operation, will always operate independently of the NHS and have the authority to 

hold view independent of other members of representatives Councils and their 

executives.   

 

The independence of the Joint Committee must not be compromised by its 

members, by other members of the Council or any of the Council’s Executive or by 

any other organisation it works with.   

 

Those involved in improving health and health services through scrutiny will always 

declare any particular interest that they may have in particular pieces of work or 

investigation being undertaken by the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

and thus may withdraw from the meeting as they consider appropriate. 

 

The Joint Health Scrutiny Committee will not take up and scrutinise individual 

concerns or individual complaints.   

 

Where a wider principal has been highlighted through such a complaint or concern, 

the Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee should consider if further scrutiny is 

required.  In such circumstances it is the principal and not the individual concern that 

will be subject to scrutiny.   

Page 26



  APPENDIX 1 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY BOARD  

  

WORK PROGRAMME 2024/25    

   

Agenda item  Purpose  Portfolio lead & 

officer lead  
Method of 

scrutiny   
Additional information  

Wednesday 12th June 2024  

Health & 

wellbeing 

strategy  

An annual update 

on the strategy 

and a review of 

the forward plan  

Cabinet member 

for Health and 

Social Care  
  
Director of 

Public Health  

  Annual item to 

scrutinise the borough’s 

health and wellbeing 

strategy.  

CQC Preparation  A presentation 

detailing the work 

relating to the 

preparation of 

CQC inspection  

Cabinet member 

for Health and 

Social Care  
  
Director of Adult 

Social Care  

  Scrutiny of the 

proposals and 

discussion about 

readiness.  

Northern Care 

Alliance / Royal 

Oldham Hospital 

– update    

To receive an 

update on 

services and 

related matters in 

respect of the 

Northern Care 

Alliance and the 

Royal Oldham 

Hospital.    

Alistair Craig, 

Chief Executive, 

Oldham Care 

Organisation, 

Northern Care 

Alliance NHS 

Trust    

  Follow-on updates 

following completion of 

the Pennine Acute 

Trust/Northern Care 

Alliance Transaction   
(Rescheduled from 

March meeting)  

Tuesday 30th July 2024  

ASC / CSC 

Transitions  
Update on 

challenges and 

opportunities 

around 

transitions    

Cabinet member 

for Health and 

Social Care  
  
Director of Adult 

Social Care  

  Rescheduled from 

March 2024  

New operating 

structures at 

Oldham NHS   

  Cabinet member 

for Health and 

Social Care  
  
Strategic 

Director of 

Commissioning 

– Intergrated 

Care Network  

    

Elective Care    Cabinet member 

for Health and 

Social Care  
  
Strategic 

Director of 

Commissioning 

– Intergrated 

Care Network  

    

Page 29

Agenda Item 8



Infant mortality 

update  
An annual update 

report on some of 

the activity 

happening to 

address issues of 

infant mortality  

Cabinet member 

for Health and 

Social Care  
  
Director of 

Public Health  

  Annual report  

Public Health 

annual report  
To review the 

Annual Report    
Cabinet member 

for Health and 

Social Care  
  
Director of 

Public Health  

  Review and scrutiny of 

proposals/performance  

Tuesday, 8th October 2024   

Northern Care 

Alliance / Royal 

Oldham Hospital 

- update    

To receive an 

update on 

services and 

related matters in 

respect of the 

Northern Care 

Alliance and the 

Royal Oldham 

Hospital.    

Alistair Craig, 

Chief Executive, 

Oldham Care 

Organisation, 

Northern Care 

Alliance NHS 

Trust    

  Update report from 

Northern Care Alliance  

Drugs and 

Alcohol Strategy 

(Adult Integrated 

Substance 

Misuse 

Treatment and 

Recovery 

Service)    

Scrutiny of policy 

proposals    
Cabinet member 

for Health and 

Social Care  
  
Director of 

Public Health   

  Scrutiny of policy 

proposals  

Overview of care 

market  
To update on the 

sustainability of 

the care market 

and impact in 

Oldham  

Cabinet member 

for Health and 

Social Care  
  
Director of Adult 

Social Care  

    

Oldham 

Community 

Leisure annual 

report and 

presentation  

To receive the 

OCL annual report 

detailing leisure 

related activity in 

the Borough, 

which OCL 

provide on behalf 

of the Council    

Director of 

Communities  
  
Chief Executive 

of OCL    

    

Mental Health 

Report   
  
Future of Mental 

Health Adult 

Social Care  

Review agreed 

report for 

oversight & 

update on next 

steps  

Director of Adult 

Social Care  
    

Tuesday 26th November 2024  

     

Oldham Total 

Care report and 

presentation  

To receive the 

OTC annual 

report, including 

Cabinet member 

for Health and 

Social Care  

   To be rescheduled 

Page 30



performance and 

forward plan     
  
Director of Adult 

Social Care  
Healthy Child 

Programme 

Update   

To update on 

changes to health 

visiting and school 

nursing services    

Cabinet member 

for Health and 

Social Care   
   
Director of 

Public Health    

  Annual update report  

 

To be rescheduled 

Health 

Inequalities Plan  
Reflection on the 

progress of the 

health inequalities 

plan  

Cabinet member 

for Health and 

Social Care   
   
Director of 

Public Health    

  Scrutiny of proposals  

Safeguarding 

Adults Annual 

Report  

Annual Update 

from ASC   
Cabinet member 

for Health and 

Social Care  
  
Director of Adult 

Social Care  

  Update from service  

 

To be rescheduled 

Tuesday 28th January 2025  

Tobacco Control 

and Smoking 

Cessation  

To receive an 

update/progress 

report on the new 

service that 

commenced in 

January 2021  

Cabinet member 

for Health and 

Social Care  
  
Director of 

Public Health  
  
Public Health 

Business & 

Strategy 

Manager  

  Update report to 

consider progress in 

relation in relation to 

high-level outcomes (ref 

2.2 and 2.3 of 

submitted 

report).  Report 

required by Committee, 

with a request for 

representatives of ABL 

Health Limited to attend 

and report.  
Prevention 

Framework roll 

out    

Update on roll out 

of prevention 

framework and to 

receive the 

Thriving 

Communities 

Programme 

evaluation report  

Cabinet member 

for Health and 

Social Care   
  
Rachel Dyson, 

Thriving 

Communities 

Hub Lead  

  Re-schedule to March 

2025 

Update & overview 

of Adult Social 

Care Target 

Operating Model 

  

Overview and 

progress report 

Director of Adult 

Social Care 
  Re-schedule to March 2025 

MioCare annual 

report and 

presentation  

To receive the 

MioCare annual 

report, including 

performance and 

forward plan   

Managing 

Director of 

MioCare  

    

Healthy Child 

Programme 

Update   

To update on 

changes to health 

visiting and school 

nursing services    

Cabinet member 

for Health and 

Social Care   
   

  Annual update report  

Re-schedule 

 

 

Page 31



Director of 

Public Health    

Tuesday 11th 

March 2025  

     

ASC Workforce 

Update    

 Director of Adult 

Social Care  

  

Sexual Health 

Update  
Focus session on 

HIV Prevention    
Portfolio - 

Health and 

Social Care.   
  
Rebecca 

Fletcher - 

Director of 

Public Health   
   
Andrea 

Entwistle, Public 

Health Business 

and Strategy 

Manager  

   To receive an 

update/progress report 

on work happening 

across Oldham to 

reduce HIV 

transmission    

    
 

  

  

Task and finish group deep dives:  

Deep dive area:  Expanded proposal:  

Availability of access to GP appointments 

across Oldham  
To understand and investigate the 

accessibility of GP appointments across 

Oldham, bringing to the forefront residents 

experiences, highlighting the array of 

practices and making recommendations to 

ensure a constant and high-quality 

provision.  
    

  

TO BE SCHEDULED (additional session)   

TBC  
JAN  

Drugs and Alcohol 
Strategy: Adult 
Integrated Misuse 
Treatment and 
Recovery in 
Oldham  

Member visit to 
DAAR Barn Street, 
Oldham   

Julian Guerrrio, 
Rebecca Fletcher  

  

          

TBC  
JAN/FEB  
  

Tobacco Harms and 
Vaping   

Informal Scrutiny 
Session with 
Oldham Youth 
Council   

    

TBC  
MAR  

Infant Mortality   
Maternity   

Additional 
Development 
Session   

CSC  
Public Health   
ICB  

  

REMOVED  

Targeted 
Universal 
Model for 0-
19 

A report to focus on 
the delivery of health 
visiting and school 
nursing services and 

Portfolio - Health 
and Social Care.  

Scrutiny of service 
delivery  

  

Page 32



years/Family 
Hubs  

the public health led 
elements of the 
family Hubs 
Programme  

Interim Director of 
Public Health - 
Rebecca Fletcher,  
  

Health 
Protection 
Update  

To receive an 
update/progress 
report on key health 
protection issues 
including updates on 
the 2023/24 Flu 
Programme  

Portfolio - Health 
and Social Care.  
Director of Public 
Health.  
Charlotte 
Stevenson,  
Consultant in Public 
Health  

Update on proposals    

Drugs and 
alcohol 
service   

To receive an 
update/ progress 
report on the re-
tendering of 
services, and the 
plans for the newly 
commissioned 
service starting 1st 
April 2023.   

Portfolio - Health 
and Social Care.  
Rebecca Fletcher, 
Director of Public 
Health.  
  

Update 
report/presentation to 
detail progress and 
outcome of the re-
tendering exercise.   

  

  
  
OUTSTANDING   
  
  

1. Reporting arrangements in respect on integrated commissioning under 
Section 75 Agreements, to include periodic updates and budget performance, 
from the Chief Operating Officer/Strategic Director and the Director of Finance 
respectively, remain to be programmed. (Possible joint chairs meetings)  

  
2. An update from the Chief Operating Officer/Strategic Director on the Urgent 
Care Review. (Push to next MY May or June or Chair’s Meeting/ Informal 
session)  

  
  
  
  
 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



KEY DECISION DOCUMENT – COVERING DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN FROM 1 JANUARY 2025  
 

1 
 

Key 
Decision 
Reference 

Subject Area For Decision Led By Decision Date Decision 
Taker 

 

ESR-29-24 
New! 

Northern Roots - Contract award and next steps 
for phased delivery 

Director of Economy 20th January 2025 Cabinet 

Description:  
To consider a contract award and associated next steps for a phased project delivery at Northern Roots, Oldham. 
 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Private. 
 
Proposed Report Title: Northern Roots - Contract award and next steps for phased delivery 
 
Background Documents: Appendices 
 
NOT FOR PUBLICATION by virtue of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 and it is not in the 
public interest to disclose the information because it relates to the financial or business affairs of the Council and a third party. 
 

ESR-19-24 
New! 

Oldham's Monitoring Report 2023-24 Director of Economy 20th January 2025 Cabinet 

P
age 35

A
genda Item

 9



KEY DECISION DOCUMENT – COVERING DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN FROM 1 JANUARY 2025  
 

2 
 

Key 
Decision 
Reference 

Subject Area For Decision Led By Decision Date Decision 
Taker 

Description:  
The Monitoring Report provides details on whether the council is meeting the milestones set out in the Local Development Scheme 
(LDS) for preparing the various Local Plan documents. The report also monitors a range of planning indicators, such as housing, 
employment and biodiversity, which seek to assess the effectiveness of the council’s land-use planning policies, and whether they are 
achieving their objectives and delivering sustainable development. It covers the previous financial year that is 1 April 2023 to 31 March 
2024. In terms of housing land supply, the Monitoring Report presents the position as at 1 April 2024. 
 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: public. 
 
Proposed Report Title: Oldham's Monitoring Report 2023-24 
 
Background Documents: Appendices 
 
Report to be considered in Public 

EE-05-24 
New! 

Voluntary, Community, Faith & Social Enterprise 
Infrastructure Grant 

Director of Public 
Health 

20th January 2025 Cabinet 

Description:  
To consider the allocation of the Voluntary, Community, Faith & Social Enterprise Infrastructure Grant. 
 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: public. 
 
Proposed Report Title: Voluntary, Community, Faith & Social Enterprise Infrastructure Grant 
 
Background Documents: Appendices 
 
Report to be considered in Public 

P
age 36



KEY DECISION DOCUMENT – COVERING DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN FROM 1 JANUARY 2025  
 

3 
 

Key 
Decision 
Reference 

Subject Area For Decision Led By Decision Date Decision 
Taker 

EDS-08-24 
New! 

Acceptance of Funding Allocations 2024-2025 
for Oldham Lifelong Learning Service 

Director of 
Neighbourhoods 

20th January 2025 Cabinet 

Description:  
To consider the acceptance of Funding Allocations 2024/2025 for the Oldham Lifelong Learning Service 
 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Private. 
 
Proposed Report Title: Acceptance of Funding Allocations 2024-2025 for Oldham Lifelong Learning Service 
 
Background Documents: Appendices 
 
NOT FOR PUBLICATION by virtue of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 and it is not in the 
public interest to disclose the information because it relates to the financial or business affairs of the Council and a third party 

ESR-26-24 
 

Selection of Preferred Developer Director of Economy 20th January 2025 Cabinet 

Description:  
Selection of preferred developer for former South Chadderton School Site. 
 
Document(s) to be considered by the Cabinet from the Deputy Chief Executive in public and private. (NOT FOR PUBLICATION by virtue 
of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 and it is not in the public interest to disclose the information 
because it relates to the financial or business affairs of the Council and a third party)  
 
Report title: Selection of Preferred Developer 
 
Background Documents: Appendices 

ESR-25-24 
 

Demolition of Office Block 1, Southlink Director of Economy 20th January 2025 Cabinet 

P
age 37



KEY DECISION DOCUMENT – COVERING DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN FROM 1 JANUARY 2025  
 

4 
 

Key 
Decision 
Reference 

Subject Area For Decision Led By Decision Date Decision 
Taker 

Description:  
Approval of funds to demolish vacant office block at Southlink. 
 
Document(s) to be considered by the Cabinet from the Deputy Chief Executive in public and private. (NOT FOR PUBLICATION by virtue 
of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 and it is not in the public interest to disclose the information 
because it relates to the financial or business affairs of the Council and a third party)  
 
Report title: Demolition of Office Block 1, Southlink, Oldham 
 
Background Documents: Appendices 

NEI-11-24 
 

Parking Service Review and Contract Director of 
Environment 

20th January 2025 Cabinet 

Description:  
To ask Cabinet to consider the implementation of a Parking Service Review and Contract. 
 
Document(s) to be considered by the Cabinet from the Deputy Chief Executive in public and private. (NOT FOR PUBLICATION by virtue 
of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 and it is not in the public interest to disclose the information 
because it relates to the financial or business affairs of the Council and a third party)  
 
Report title: Parking Service Review and Contract 
 
Background Documents: Appendices 

EE-04-24 
 

Oldham Community Leisure (OCL) Future 
Model 

Director of 
Neighbourhoods 

20th January 2025 Cabinet 

P
age 38



KEY DECISION DOCUMENT – COVERING DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN FROM 1 JANUARY 2025  
 

5 
 

Key 
Decision 
Reference 

Subject Area For Decision Led By Decision Date Decision 
Taker 

Description:  
To ask Cabinet to consider the implementation of Oldham Community Leisure (OCL) Future Model 
 
Document(s) to be considered by the Cabinet from the Deputy Chief Executive in public and private. (NOT FOR PUBLICATION by virtue 
of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 and it is not in the public interest to disclose the information 
because it relates to the financial or business affairs of the Council and a third party)  
 
Report title: Oldham Community Leisure (OCL) Future Model 
 
Background Documents: Appendices 

FCR-26-24 Housing Revenue Account Estimates for 
2025/26 to 2029/30 and Projected Outturn for 
2024/25. 

Director of Finance, 
Executive Director for 
Place & Economic 
Growth 

10th February 2025 Cabinet 

Description:  
The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Outturn Estimates for 2024/25, the detailed budget for 2025/26 and the Strategic HRA Estimates 
for the four years 2026/27 to 2029/30. 
 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: public. 
 
Proposed Report Title: Housing Revenue Account Estimates for 2025/26 to 2029/30 and Projected Outturn for 2024/25. 
 
Background Documents: Appendices 
 
Report to be considered in Public 
 

P
age 39



KEY DECISION DOCUMENT – COVERING DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN FROM 1 JANUARY 2025  
 

6 
 

Key 
Decision 
Reference 

Subject Area For Decision Led By Decision Date Decision 
Taker 

FCR-23-24 
 

Revenue Budget 2025/26 and Medium-Term 
Financial Strategy 2025/26 to 2029/30 

Director of Finance 10th February 2025 Cabinet 

Description:  
To consider the Administration’s detailed revenue budget for 2025/26 and budget reduction proposals, together with the Medium-Term 
Financial Strategy for 2025/26 to 2029/30, incorporating the current policy landscape and Local Government Finance Settlement. 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private:  
 
Proposed Report Title:  
Revenue Budget 2025/26 and Medium-Term Financial Strategy 2025/26 to 2029/30     
 
 
Background Documents: appendices 
 
Report to be considered in Public 
 

HSC-05-24 
 

Financial Update and working capital 
requirements for 2024/25 – Oldham Total Care 

Director of Adult Care 
(DASS) 

10th February 2025 Cabinet 

P
age 40



KEY DECISION DOCUMENT – COVERING DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN FROM 1 JANUARY 2025  
 

7 
 

Key 
Decision 
Reference 

Subject Area For Decision Led By Decision Date Decision 
Taker 

Description:  
To consider a financial Update and working capital requirements for 2024/25, in respect of Oldham Total Care 
 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: public. 
 
Proposed Report Title: Financial Update and working capital requirements for 2024/25 – Oldham Total Care 
 
 
Background Documents: Various appendices 
 
Report to be considered in Public 

FCR-21-24 Revenue Monitor and Capital Investment 
Programme 2024/25 Quarter 3 

Director of Finance 10th February 2025 Cabinet 

Description:  
The report provides an update on the Council’s 2024/25 forecast revenue budget position and the financial position of the capital 
programme as at the period ending 31 December 2024 (Quarter 3) 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Proposed Report Title:  
 
Revenue Monitor and Capital Investment Programme 2024/25 Quarter 3 
 
Background Documents: Appendices – Various 
 
Report to be considered in Public 
 

FCR-20-24 
 

Treasury Management Strategy Statement 
2025/26 

Director of Finance 10th February 2025 Cabinet 

P
age 41



KEY DECISION DOCUMENT – COVERING DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN FROM 1 JANUARY 2025  
 

8 
 

Key 
Decision 
Reference 

Subject Area For Decision Led By Decision Date Decision 
Taker 

Description:  
To consider the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy for 2025/26 - including Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement, Annual 
Investment Strategy and Prudential Indicators. 
 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Proposed Report Title: Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2025/26 
 
 
Background Documents: Appendices 
 
Report to be considered in Public 
 

FCR-19-24 
 

Capital Programme & Capital Strategy for 
2025/26 to 2029/30 

Director of Finance 10th February 2025 Cabinet 

Description:  
To consider the Council’s Capital programme and capital strategy. 
 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: public. 
 
Proposed Report Title: Capital Programme & Capital Strategy for 2025/26 to 2029/30  
 
Background Documents: Appendices 
 
Report to be considered in Public 
 

FCR-22-24 Revenue Monitor and Capital Investment 
Programme 2024/25 Month 10 

Director of Finance 3rd March 2025 Cabinet 

P
age 42



KEY DECISION DOCUMENT – COVERING DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN FROM 1 JANUARY 2025  
 

9 
 

Key 
Decision 
Reference 

Subject Area For Decision Led By Decision Date Decision 
Taker 

Description:  
The report provides an update on the Council’s 2024/25 forecast revenue budget position and the financial position of the capital 
programme as at the period ending 31 January 2025 (Month 10) 
 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: public. 
 
Proposed Report Title: Revenue Monitor and Capital Investment Programme 2024/25 Month 10   
 
Background Documents: Appendices – Various 
 
Report to be considered in Public 
 

FCR-27-24 
New! 

Armed Forces Covenant Chief Executive 10th February 2025 Cabinet 

Description:  
Seeking authority to creating an Armed Forces Covenant for service men and women and for veterans. 
 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: public. 
 
Proposed Report Title: Armed Forces Covenant 
 
Background Documents: Appendices – Various 
 
Report to be considered in Public. 
. 

P
age 43



KEY DECISION DOCUMENT – COVERING DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN FROM 1 JANUARY 2025  
 

10 
 

Key 
Decision 
Reference 

Subject Area For Decision Led By Decision Date Decision 
Taker 

ESR-30-24 
New! 

Planned and Preventative Maintenance 
Contracts – Direct Award for Interim Solutions 
and Planned Procurement of Long-Term 
Solutions 

Director of Economy 10th February 2025 Cabinet 

Description:  
Seeking authority for the delivery of planned and Preventative Maintenance Contracts (Direct Award for Interim Solutions and Planned 
Procurement of Long-Term Solutions) 
 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: public. 
 
Proposed Report Title: Planned and Preventative Maintenance Contracts 
 
Background Documents: Appendices – Various 
 
Report to be considered in Public. 
 

 
 
Key: 
 
New! - indicates an item that has been added this month 
 

Notes: 
1. The procedure for requesting details of documents listed to be submitted to decision takers for consideration is to contact the Contact 

Officer contained within the Key Decision Sheet for that item. The contact address for documents is Oldham Council, Civic Centre, 
West Street, Oldham, OL1 1UH. Other documents relevant to those matters may be submitted to the decision maker. 

2. Where on a Key Decision Sheet the Decision Taker is Cabinet, the list of its members are detailed on the Council’s website 

P
age 44



KEY DECISION DOCUMENT – COVERING DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN FROM 1 JANUARY 2025  
 

11 
 

Key 
Decision 
Reference 

Subject Area For Decision Led By Decision Date Decision 
Taker 

3. Full Key Decision details (including documents to be submitted to the decision maker for consideration, specific contact officer details 
and notification on if a report if likely to be considered in private) can be found via the online published plan at: 
http://committees.oldham.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=144&RD=0  

 
 
 
 
 
Notice of Private Reports 
 
(In accordance with Part 2 of the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) Meetings and Access to Information) (England) 
Regulations 2012)  
 
Oldham Borough Council intends to hold a private meeting (or part thereof) of the Cabinet on Monday, 20th January 2025 
 
Decision to be taken (Agenda Item) Decisions proposed to be taken in private at Cabinet on 20th January 2025: 
 

a. Northern Roots - Contract award and next steps for phased delivery 
Reason: 
The meeting (or part thereof) will be held in exempt session on the grounds that the reports and background papers will contain the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) – information 
relating to the financial or business affairs of the Council and a third party.  
 

b. Acceptance of Funding Allocations 2024-2025 for Oldham Lifelong Learning Service 
Reason: 
The meeting (or part thereof) will be held in exempt session on the grounds that the reports and background papers will contain the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) – information 
relating to the financial or business affairs of the Council and a third party.  
 

P
age 45

http://committees.oldham.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=144&RD=0


KEY DECISION DOCUMENT – COVERING DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN FROM 1 JANUARY 2025  
 

12 
 

Key 
Decision 
Reference 

Subject Area For Decision Led By Decision Date Decision 
Taker 

c. Parking Service Review and Contract 
Reason: 
The meeting (or part thereof) will be held in exempt session on the grounds that the reports and background papers will contain the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) – information 
relating to the financial or business affairs of the Council and a third party.  
 

d. Oldham Community Leisure (OCL) Future Model  
Reason: 
The meeting (or part thereof) will be held in exempt session on the grounds that the reports and background papers will contain the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) – information 
relating to the financial or business affairs of the Council and a third party.  
 

e. Selection of Preferred Developer  
Reason: 
The meeting (or part thereof) will be held in exempt session on the grounds that the reports and background papers will contain the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) – information 
relating to the financial or business affairs of the Council and a third party.  
 
 

f. Demolition of Office Block 1, Southlink 
Reason: 
The meeting (or part thereof) will be held in exempt session on the grounds that the reports and background papers will contain the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) – information 
relating to the financial or business affairs of the Council and a third party.  
 
 
 
Representations: 

P
age 46



KEY DECISION DOCUMENT – COVERING DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN FROM 1 JANUARY 2025  
 

13 
 

Key 
Decision 
Reference 

Subject Area For Decision Led By Decision Date Decision 
Taker 

If you wish to make representations against the intention to hold a private meeting, please send these to Constitutional Services, Level 
3, Civic Centre, Oldham, OL1 1UL or email: constitutional.services@oldham.gov.uk 
 
 

P
age 47

mailto:constitutional.services@oldham.gov.uk


T
his page is intentionally left blank



Date: 26 November 2026 
 

 

 

  

Constitutional Services 
Oldham Council 
Level 3 Civic Centre 
OL3 
West Street 
Oldham 
OL1 1UG 

 

 

Dear Councillor Moores, Chair  Adults Social Care and Health Scrutiny Panel 

Re: (Cabinet Member for Building a Better Oldham – Urgent Action Procedure:  

Northern Roots) 

I am writing to seek your agreement to Shareholder Committee authorising the above matter 

that might require an urgent decision under Rule 13 of the Constitution.  The Shareholder 

Committee on 3rd October 2024 will receive a Report from MioCare on its performance, 

accounts and business plan. 

 

I am also writing to seek your agreement authorising the above matter that a requires a 

decision to be made in private, in that the matter was not published 28 days in advance of the 

meeting in accordance with Part 2 of the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings 

and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012. 

 

The decision to be taken relates to  MioCare and is to be considered in private on the grounds 

that discussions may involve the likely disclosure of exempt information, under paragraph 3 as 

defined in the provisions of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, to the Local Government Act 

1972 and public interest would not be served in publishing the information 

 

The report may require the Shareholder Committee to make decisions based on the information 

provided. 

 

The decision is needed to deliver the Shareholder Committee’s duty to safeguard the Council’s 

investment in Companies wholly owned by the council and ensure that the Company complies 

with the Council’s corporate objectives and maximise outcomes in line with Council Policy 

 

Yours sincerely 

Andrew Mather 

 

Officer requesting urgency 

Constitutional Services Officer 

 

 

Executive Director  

 

Date: 

Chair of  Adults Social Care and Health 
Scrutiny Board 

 

Date: 

Page 49

Agenda Item 10



 

  

 

Page 50



Page 51

Agenda Item 11



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Document is Restricted

Page 71

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Minutes of Previous Adults Social Care and Health Scrutiny Board Meeting
	6 Smoking in Pregnancy
	7 Terms of Reference - Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee for the Northern Care Alliance
	Appendix 1Revised Terms of reference - JHOSCNCA

	8 Work Programme
	9 Key Decision Document
	10 Rule 13 and 14
	11 MioCare Annual Review
	13 MioCare Annual Review

